
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS

NOVEMBER 25, 2019

Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the governing body of the City of
Navasota will be held on the 25th of November, 2019 at 6:00 PM at the City Hall in the
City Council Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street, Navasota,
Texas 77868, at which time the following subjects will be considered, to wit:

1. Call to Order.

2. Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance

3. Remarks of visitors: Any citizen may address the City Council on any matter.
Registration forms are available on the podium and/or table in the back of the city
council chambers. This form should be completed and delivered to the City
Secretary by 5:45 p.m. Please limit remarks to three minutes. The City Council will
receive the information, ask staff to look into the matter, or place the issue on a
future agenda. Topics of operational concerns shall be directed to the City Manager.

4. Staff Report:

(a) Introduction of new employees;

(b) Arts Council quarterly report for 4th quarter;

(c) Proclamation - Tree of Angels;

(d) Board and Commission update; and

(e) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests,
including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information
regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials,
public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized or
sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community
events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be
attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent
threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after
the posting of the agenda.

5. Conduct a public hearing to receive public comment and testimony regarding zoning
changes initiated by the Planning and Zoning Commission, changing the current
zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to M-2: Heavy Industrial District
for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 4-3, Acres 22.809,
changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-1A:
high density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district for the
property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 21-1, Acres 54.00, changing the
current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-3: high density,
multi-dwelling unit, residential district for the properties legally described as A0055-
6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 19, Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 18, Acres
23.52 and A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres 10.00, located in Navasota, Grimes
County, Texas.



6. Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 910-19,
changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to M-2:
Heavy Industrial District for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract
4-3, Acres 22.809, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space
district to R-1A: high density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential
district for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 21-1, Acres
54.00, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-
2: medium density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district for the properties legally
described as A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 19, Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract
6, Par 18, Acres 23.52 and A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres 10.00, located in
Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.

7. Conduct a public hearing to receive public comments and testimony regarding the
voluntary annexation request submitted by James C. Hassell of a 102.4197 acre
tract of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-62 and the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-
55, Grimes County, Texas.

8. Consideration and possible action on an Annexation Service Plan Agreement for the
delivery of municipal services to a 102.4197 acre tract proposed for annexation to
the City of Navasota.

9. Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 911-19,
extending the boundary limits of the City of Navasota, Texas, providing for the
annexation of approximately 102.4197 acre tract of land in the James Whitesides
Survey, A-62 and the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Grimes County, Texas.

10. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 907-19,
amending Chapter 2 Animal Control of the Code of Ordinances, City of Navasota,
Texas.

11. Executive Session: The City Council shall meet in Executive Session as permitted by
Section 551.087, Texas Government Code, for the purpose of deliberation
regarding economic development negotiations with Kolkhorst Development
Navasota, LLC regarding the development of commercial and other improvements
to property located on E. Washington Avenue, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.

12. Reconvene in open session.

13. Consideration and possible action on Executive Session Item relating to Executive
Session as permitted by Section 551.087, Texas Government Code, on approval of
a Chapter 380 agreement with Kolkhorst Development Navasota, LLC regarding the
development of commercial and other improvements to property located on E.
Washington Avenue, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.

14. Adjourn.

DATED THIS THE 20TH OF NOVEMBER, 2019

/BS/

BY: BRAD STAFFORD, CITY MANAGER



I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above notice of meeting
of the governing body of the CITY OF NAVASOTA, is a true and correct copy of
said notice and that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice in the glass
bulletin board, in the foyer, on the south side of the Municipal Building as well
as in the bulletin board on the north side of the Municipal Building of the City of
Navasota, Texas, a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public
at all times, and said notice was posted on the 20th of November, 2019 at
10:56 AM and will remain posted continuously for at least 72 hours preceding
the scheduled time of said meeting. Agendas may be viewed at
www.navasotatx.gov.

The City Council reserves the right to convene in Executive Session at any time
deemed necessary for the consideration of confidential matters under the
Texas Government Code, Sections 551.071-551.084.

DATED THIS THE 20TH OF NOVEMBER, 2019

/SMH/

BY: SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY

THIS FACILITY IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE AND ACCESSIBLE PARKING
SPACES ARE AVAILABLE. REQUESTS FOR ACCOMMODATIONS OR
INTERPRETIVE SERVICES MUST BE MADE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THIS
MEETING. PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY SECRETARY'S OFFICE
AT(936) 825 6475 OR (936) 825 6408 OR BY FAX AT (936) 825 2403.



City Manager’s Message 

An Executive Summary of Agenda Items and Current Issues 

 

City of Navasota 

City Council Meeting 

11-25-19 

 

1.  Call to order 

 

2. Invocation and Pledges of Allegiance 

  

3. Remarks of Visitors 

Staff is unaware of anyone wishing to address the City Council. 

 

4.  Staff Report: 

Introduction of new employees – The Police Department will introduce new 

employees. 

 

Arts Council quarterly report for 4th quarter – The Arts Council provided the 

quarterly report for review. 

 

Proclamation - Tree of Angels; 

 

5.  Conduct a public hearing to receive public comment and testimony 

regarding zoning changes initiated by the Planning and Zoning Commission, 

changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to M-

2: Heavy Industrial District for the property legally described as A0046 J 

Moore, Tract 4-3, Acres 22.809, changing the current zoning from A/O: 

Agriculture/open space district to R-1A: high density, single dwelling unit, 

7,000 square foot lot, residential district for the property legally described as 

A0046 J Moore, Tract 21-1, Acres 54.00, changing the current zoning from 

A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-3: high density, multi-dwelling 

unit, residential district for the properties legally described as A0055- 6 D 

Tyler, Tract 6, Par 19, Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 18, Acres 

23.52 and A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres 10.00, located in Navasota, 

Grimes County, Texas. 

The Planning & Zoning Commission continues to rezone ag open land across the 

City.  This round is located around Heritage Meadows and a tract along Business 

6.  The land around Heritage Meadows is proposed to be zoned R-1A and R-2, 

while the tract along Business 6 is proposed to be zoned M-2.  The public hearing 

held by the Planning & Zoning Commission had several residents from Heritage 

Meadows in attendance and after they expressed their thoughts, the P&Z made an 

adjustment to their original proposal to zone all tracts around Heritage Meadows 

as R-3.  The current proposal is to zone 3 properties R-2 and one R-4 which they 

feel compliments the existing subdivision. 

 



6.  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 910-

19, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to 

M-2: Heavy Industrial District for the property legally described as A0046 J 

Moore, Tract 4-3, Acres 22.809, changing the current zoning from A/O: 

Agriculture/open space district to R-1A: high density, single dwelling unit, 

7,000 square foot lot, residential district for the property legally described as 

A0046 J Moore, Tract 21-1, Acres 54.00, changing the current zoning from 

A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-2: medium density, multi-dwelling 

unit, residential district for the properties legally described as A0055-6 D 

Tyler, Tract 6, Par 19, Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 18, Acres 

23.52 and A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres 10.00, located in Navasota, 

Grimes County, Texas. 

 The Planning & Zoning Commission continues to rezone ag open land across the 

City.  This round is located around Heritage Meadows and a tract along Business 

6.  The land around Heritage Meadows is proposed to be zoned R-1A and R-2, 

while the tract along Business 6 is proposed to be zoned M-2.  The public hearing 

held by the Planning & Zoning Commission had several residents from Heritage 

Meadows in attendance and after they expressed their thoughts, the P&Z made an 

adjustment to their original proposal to zone all tracts around Heritage Meadows 

as R-3.  The current proposal is to zone 3 properties R-2 and one R-4 which they 

feel compliments the existing subdivision. 

 

7.  Conduct a public hearing to receive public comments and testimony 

regarding the voluntary annexation request submitted by James C. Hassell of 

a 102.4197-acre tract of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-62 and the 

Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Grimes County, Texas. 

 Jim Hassell requested voluntary annexation of a 102.4197-acre tract of land on 

the west side of Pecan Lakes Golf Course and Pecan Lakes Estates.  The land will 

house phase III of Pecan Lakes Estates. 

 

8.  Consideration and possible action on an Annexation Service Plan Agreement 

for the delivery of municipal services to a 102.4197-acre tract proposed for 

annexation to the City of Navasota. 

 The City is required to develop a service plan agreement for any land being 

annexed.  The service plan states the services the City will provide to the property 

if annexed. 

 

9.  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 911-

19, extending the boundary limits of the City of Navasota, Texas, providing 

for the annexation of approximately 102.4197-acre tract of land in the James 

Whitesides Survey, A-62 and the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Grimes County, 

Texas. 

 Jim Hassell requests the City to annex a 102.4197-acre tract of land west of Pecan 

Lakes Golf Course and Pecan Lakes Estates for the expansion of Pecan Lakes 

Estates. 

 



10.  Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 

907-19, amending Chapter 2 Animal Control of the Code of Ordinances, City 

of Navasota, Texas. 

 Second reading of the ordinance amending the animal control ordinance. 

 

11.  Executive Session: The City Council shall meet in Executive Session as 

permitted by Section 551.087, Texas Government Code, for the purpose of 

deliberation regarding economic development negotiations with Kolkhorst 

Development Navasota, LLC regarding the development of commercial and 

other improvements to property located on E. Washington Avenue, 

Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. 

 Jim Kolkhorst is developing a Burger King and other improvements on East 

Washington.  Previously City Council considered a development agreement, and 

Mr. Kolkhorst is requesting a slight change in the agreement. 

 

12.  Reconvene in open session. 

 

13.  Consideration and possible action on Executive Session Item relating to 

Executive Session as permitted by Section 551.087, Texas Government Code, 

on approval of a Chapter 380 agreement with Kolkhorst Development 

Navasota, LLC regarding the development of commercial and other 

improvements to property located on E. Washington Avenue, Navasota, 

Grimes County, Texas. 

 

 

Calendar of Events 

 

November 28th&29th    Thanksgiving Holiday 

     City Offices Closed 

 

December 4th     Food for Families Food Drive 

6:00 a.m.- 7:00 p.m.   Mid-South Synergy Offices 

 

December 9th     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

December 24th & 25th    Christmas Holidays 

     City offices closed 

 

Dec. 23rd, 26th, 27th    Brad Vacation 

 

January 1st     New Year Holiday 

     City Offices Closed 

 

January 13th     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.     Municipal Building 



 

January 20th     Martin Luther King Day 

     City Offices Closed 

 

January 27th     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Brad Stafford 

City Manager 

 



 
 
 
 

Vision Statement: 
 

Navasota 2027:  What America Wants To Be 
“A beautiful, progressive, vibrant, service-oriented, 

close-knit community filled with 
historical charm and promise for people and business.” 

 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“To guide Navasota’s growth in a way that maintains 
our heritage, culture, and uniqueness while 

maximizing our economic and social development.” 
 
 
 



 
 
 

THE CITY OF NAVASOTA 
COUNCIL LEADERSHIP POLICY 

 
 
It is the desire of the Navasota City Council to demonstrate responsible 
leadership by: 
 

(a) Establishing a 2027 Strategic Growth Map for the City of Navasota. 
 
(b) Assuring stable and effective city operations. 
 
(c) Developing and adopting policies that will guide the growth of the City 

of Navasota. 
 
(d) Facilitating private/public sector partnerships at the local, regional, 

state and federal level that will invest in the future of Navasota. 
 
(e) Ensuring all Navasota boards, commissions and committees are 

aligned with the Council’s growth policies. 



 
 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

S.M.A.R.T. GOAL SETTING SYSTEM 

Area Today’s Date Target Date Date Achieved 

City Council Retreat 10/2/19 2019-2020  
 

Goal Statement: A descriptive statement of the DESIRED OUTCOME. 
(a S.M.A.R.T. Goal is Specific, Measurable, Actionable, Responsible and Time-bound) 

 
The Management Connection, Inc. provided professional facilitation to the City of Navasota Council on 

September 4th, 2019. This document captures the Council’s direction to staff.  
 

 

Action Steps (List the specific actions you will take to achieve this goal) Target Date Who 
Percentage 
Completion 

Outcomes 

Direction from Council  
1. There needs to be a discussion on how to get 

state lawmakers to partner with the City.  
a. Potentially inviting Schwertner, 

Leman, and Kolkhorst to visit and 
tour the city  

b. Alan Bojorquez is creating a report 
card on all the legislature and looking 
for help 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

2. Figure out a way to speed up the billing 
cycle to reduce the lag time from end of 
month to bill date for payments 

a. We can make every period longer or 
each period 31 days—it will take a 
few years, but you’ll catch up 

b. Propose a staff member under Lance 
and Rita to handle all meters—Meter 
Maintenance Technician 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

3. The City Manager will do a cost benefit 
analysis on the Boys and Girls Club  

a. Benefit of having them in the 
community along with the mechanics 
of it to present to the council 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  



 
 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

4. The Council will move forward with the 
concept of bonds for utility and street 
improvements  

a. Bonds will be broken into three-year 
small increments 

i. Focus will be on high traffic 
roads first 

ii. Host community meetings to 
get more buy in from the city 

iii. City Manager will present the 
numbers to council 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

5. Gather a proposal for a new look and cost of 
renovating fire station at the current 
location.  

a. A rendering needs to be created to 
show the public 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

6. Review the Social Media policy (specifically 
# 3 & 4) as it relates to non-city employees 
and council members.  

a. It’s a developing area legally. We 
should review the policy because it’s 
from 2014 and make sure it’s in 
accordance with current situation. 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

7. Design the new website  
a. Have 2-3 citizens sit in to consult 

about the ease of receiving 
notifications. Get a mixture of people 
who are and aren’t familiar with 
computers  

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

8. Find more ways to get coverage in the news 
a. neighbors@theeagle.com - send 

pictures to get included 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

9. Develop relationships with Boards and 
Commissions: 

a. Have a mandatory annual meeting 
with members to talk about what a 
comp plan is, what the Council’s 
expectations are, and that they need 
to be able to make decisions as a 
board. They need to know about open 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  



 
 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

meetings act, public information act, 
Robert’s Rules of Order, ect.  

i. By being involved, we have a 
chance to educate them about 
how the city works  

ii. We don’t want to take away 
their ability to think, but we 
can give them parameters  

iii. We should create a statement 
to be read before each meeting 
that says “we are our own 
board, we work toward the 
goals of the city and will stand 
by the final decision”. It’s a 
reminder that we’re all here to 
do the best for the city. A 
mission statement to go at the 
top of the packet. 

 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 4. AGENDA DATE: November 25,
2019

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Staff Report:

(a) Introduction of new employees;

(b) Arts Council quarterly report for 4th quarter;

(c) Proclamation - Tree of Angels;

(d) Board and Commission update; and

(e) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of
community interests, including expressions of thanks,
congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday
schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials,
public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming
events organized or sponsored by the City; information
regarding social, ceremonial, or community events organized or
sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended
by City officials or employees; and announcements involving
imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in
the City that has arisen after the posting of the agenda.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Arts Council Quarterly Report
2. Proclamation

Brad Stafford, City Manager

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1574179187x_at.pdf
http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1574178950x_at.pdf


























































 
 

Proclamation 
The City of Navasota, Texas 

 
“TREE OF ANGELS” 

   
WHEREAS, when crimes occur, society must protect not only the rights of the 
accused, but also the rights of the victim and; 
 
WHEREAS, recognizing that the holiday season is a difficult time for victims and 
their families, The Tree of Angels has become a memorable tradition observed in 
Grimes County to recognize that the holiday season is a difficult time for victims 
and their families.  The event honors surviving victims of violent crime and 
victims’ families by allowing loved ones to bring an angel to place on a special 
Christmas tree and; 
 
WHEREAS, all of Grimes County recognizes the important work of all who 
commit themselves to assist crime victims and their loved ones.  Traditions like 
the Tree of Angels reflect the kind and compassionate spirit of the holiday 
season and encourage us all to play a role in building a safer, more just 
community and; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, I, Bert Miller, Mayor of the City of Navasota, do hereby 
proclaim the month of December 2019 as “TREE OF ANGELS MONTH” and 
urge citizens of Grimes County to participate by placing an angel ornament on 
the tree located in the lobby of the Navasota Municipal Building, or on the tree 
located in the lobby of the Grimes County Law Enforcement Center, to remember 
and pay tribute to those whose lives have been touched by violence.  
 
DATED THIS THE 25TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
      ________________________ 
                       BERT MILLER, MAYOR  



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 5. AGENDA DATE: November 25,
2019

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Conduct a public hearing to receive public comment and
testimony regarding zoning changes initiated by the Planning
and Zoning Commission, changing the current zoning from A/O:
Agriculture/open space district to M-2: Heavy Industrial District
for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 4-3,
Acres 22.809, changing the current zoning from A/O:
Agriculture/open space district to R-1A: high density, single
dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district for the
property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 21-1, Acres
54.00, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open
space district to R-3: high density, multi-dwelling unit,
residential district for the properties legally described as A0055-
6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 19, Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6,
Par 18, Acres 23.52 and A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres
10.00, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Following a rezoning workshop held by the Planning and Zoning
Commission staff was tasked with completing public notice
requirements and drafting an ordinance rezoning the listed
properties. The purpose of the hearing is to discuss the
proposed Agricultural/Open Space rezoning to ensure compliance
with the Comprehensive Plan and streamline the development
process for future developers.

After listening to public comments during the public hearing held
by P&Z on November 14, 2019 the P&Z  changed their
recommendation from R-3 to R-2 for properties 1, 2, and 3.

Public hearing opened at ________p.m.

Public hearing closed at ________p.m.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:

Lupe Diosdado, Community Development
Director



none
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends conducting a public hearing to receive public
comment and testimony regarding zoning changes initiated by
the Planning and Zoning Commission, changing the current
zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to M-2: Heavy
Industrial District for the property legally described as A0046 J
Moore, Tract 4-3, Acres 22.809, changing the current zoning from
A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-1A: high density,
single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district for
the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 21-1,
Acres 54.00, changing the current zoning from A/O:
Agriculture/open space district to R-2: medium density, multi-
dwelling unit, residential district, residential district for the
properties legally described as A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 19,
Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 18, Acres 23.52 and
A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres 10.00, located in Navasota,
Grimes County, Texas.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Staff Report

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1573840162x_at.pdf


  
 

City of Navasota Planning and Zoning Commission 
Staff Report 

 

 
Date: November 15, 2019 
To:  Planning and Zoning Commission 
From:  Lupe Diosdado, Community Development Director  
Agenda Item: A/O Agricultural Open Space District Rezoning 
 
PROPERTY INFORMATION: 
MAP # 1 
PID: R14377 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 6, PAR 18, ACRES 23.52 
OWNER: ANZALDUA, DAVID & HILDA 
ADDRESS: P O BOX 25, PLANTERSVILLE, TX 77363 
ACRES: 23.52 
ZONING: Split B-1 and A/O 
 
MAP # 2 
PID: R14379 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 6, PAR 19, ACRES 67.50 
OWNER: BURLIN, BETTY FAMILY PARTNERSHIP LTD 
ADDRESS: P O BOX 1479, NAVASOTA, TX 77868 
ACRES: 67.50 
ZONING: Split B-1 and A/O 
 
MAP # 3 
PID: R36854 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 19-1, ACRES 10.00 
OWNER: BURLIN, BETTY FAMILY PARTNERSHIP LTD 
ADDRESS: P O BOX 1479, NAVASOTA, TX 77868 
ACRES: 10.00 
ZONING: A/O 
 
MAP # 4 
PID: R13790 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 21-1, ACRES 54.00 
OWNER: PIERCE, JOHN L, II 
ADDRESS: 518 N LA SALLE, NAVASOTA, TX 77868 
ACRES: 54.00 
ZONING: A/O 
 
 



MAP # 5 
PID: R13769 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 4-3, ACRES 22.809 
OWNER: BOBO, JOHN O & DOROTHY 
ADDRESS: 9310 S BUS6, NAVASOTA, TX 77868 
ACRES: 22.81 
ZONING: A/O 
 
REQUEST: 
Conduct a public hearing to receive public comment and testimony regarding zoning changes initiated 
by the Planning and Zoning Commission, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space 
district to M-2: Heavy Industrial District for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 4-3, 
Acres 22.809, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-1A: high 
density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district for the property legally described 
as A0046 J Moore, Tract 21-1, Acres 54.00, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open 
space district to R-3: high density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district for the properties legally 
described as A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 19, Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 18, Acres 23.52 
and A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres 10.00, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. 
 
SUMMARY: 
The purpose of the rezoning of A/O districts is to ensure compliance with the Comprehensive Plan and 
streamline the development process for future developers. The listed properties are within the Airport 
Growth Center per the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
On October 10, 2019 the Planning and Zoning Commission held a workshop discussing rezoning 
properties located within the Airport Growth Center and recommended rezoning Property # 1, 2 and 3 
from A/O district to R-3: high density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district. Rezoning said property to 
R-3 would allow for future development of single and multi-dwelling units, leaving the portion along the 
frontage as B-1: General Business District to encourage mixed development.  
 
The P&Z also recommended rezoning Property # 4 from A/O district to R-1A: high density, single 
dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district. Rezoning said property to R-1A will allow for the 
development of single dwelling units and the possible expansion of the Heritage Meadows subdivision. 
In addition, the P&Z recommended rezoning Property # 5 from A/O district to M-2: Heavy industrial to 
allow for the future development of heavy industry abutting the existing railway. 
 
On November 14, 2019 the Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing to discuss the 
aforementioned zoning changes. Citizen turnout voiced their concerns about the proposed R-3 zoning 
designation. After listening to input from citizens present the Planning and Zoning Commission decided 
to change the proposed zoning recommendation from R-3 to R-2 for properties 1, 2 and 3 in order to 
better compliment the adjacent single dwelling unit subdivision. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends conducting a public hearing and approving the proposed zoning changes. 
 
 
 
 



COMPREHENSIVE PLAN RELATION: 
“Areas within the City’s boundaries and ETJ that are positioned for development.” (Comp Plan pg.63) 

Airport Growth Center

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 



AERIAL/ZONING MAP VIEW: 

 

 

  



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 6. AGENDA DATE: November 25,
2019

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on the first reading of
Ordinance No. 910-19, changing the current zoning from A/O:
Agriculture/open space district to M-2: Heavy Industrial District
for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 4-3,
Acres 22.809, changing the current zoning from A/O:
Agriculture/open space district to R-1A: high density, single
dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district for the
property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 21-1, Acres
54.00, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open
space district to R-2: medium density, multi-dwelling unit,
residential district for the properties legally described as A0055-
6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 19, Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6,
Par 18, Acres 23.52 and A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres
10.00, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Following a rezoning workshop held by the Planning and Zoning
Commission staff was tasked with completing public notice
requirements and drafting an ordinance rezoning the listed
properties. 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
none
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Lupe Diosdado, Community Development
Director



Staff recommends approval of the first reading of Ordinance No.,
910-19, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open
space district to M-2: Heavy Industrial District for the property
legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 4-3, Acres 22.809,
changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space
district to R-1A: high density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 square
foot lot, residential district for the property legally described as
A0046 J Moore, Tract 21-1, Acres 54.00, changing the current
zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-2: medium
density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district for the
properties legally described as A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 19,
Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 18, Acres 23.52 and
A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres 10.00, located in Navasota,
Grimes County, Texas..
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance No. 910-19

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1574118034x_at.pdf


ORDINANCE NO. 910-19 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
NAVASOTA, TEXAS TO REZONE THE FOLLOWING PROPERTY FROM A/O: 
AGRICULTURE/OPEN SPACE DISTRICT TO M-2: HEAVY INDUSTRIAL 
DISTRICT: A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 4-3, ACRES 22.809, AMENDING THE 
OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS TO REZONE THE 
FOLLOWING PROPERTY FROM A/O: AGRICULTURE/OPEN SPACE DISTRICT 
TO R-1A: HIGH DENSITY, SINGLE DWELLING UNIT, 7,000 SQUARE FOOT 
LOT, RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT: A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 21-1, ACRES 54.00, 
AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS 
TO REZONE THE FOLLOWING PROPERTIES FROM A/O: AGRICULTURE/OPEN 
SPACE DISTRICT TO R-2: MEDIUM DENSITY, MULTI-DWELLING UNIT, 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT: A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 6, PAR 19, ACRES 67.50, 
A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 6, PAR 18, ACRES 23.52 and A0055-6 D TYLER, 
TRACT 19-1, ACRES 10.00; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, on the 10TH day of October 2019, a workshop was held by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission to discuss the rezoning of certain properties currently 
zoned as A/O: Agricultural/Open Space Districts to be in accordance with the 
Comprehensive Plan of the City of Navasota; and 
 

WHEREAS, it was determined that a 22.809 acre tract legally described as 
A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 4-3, should be rezoned from A/O: Agriculture/Open Space 
District to M-2: Heavy Industrial District; and 

 
WHEREAS, it was determined that a 54 acre tract legally described as A0046 J 

MOORE, TRACT 21-1, should be rezoned from A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District to 

R-1A: high density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district; and 
 
WHEREAS, it was determined that a 67.50 acre tract legally described as 

A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 6, PAR 19, a 23.52 acre tract legally described as A0055-6 D 
TYLER, TRACT 6, PAR 18, and a 10 acre tract legally described as A0055-6 D TYLER, 
TRACT 19-1, should be rezoned from A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District to R-3: high 
density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district; and 

 
WHEREAS, the rezoning of said properties is in harmony with the 

Comprehensive Plan of the City of Navasota; and 
 

WHEREAS, on the 14th of November 2019, a public hearing was held before the 
Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Navasota, a quorum being present on 
the occasion and said matter of rezoning being part of the agenda for said Commission 



meeting, an opportunity to present arguments for and against the proposed rezoning 
was held; and 
 

WHEREAS, the properties are shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes pertinent; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends to the Navasota 
City Council, that the property legally described as A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 4-3, ACRES 
22.809, be rezoned as M-2: Heavy Industrial District; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends to the Navasota 

City Council, that the property legally described as A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 21-1, 
ACRES 54.00, be rezoned as R-1A: high density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot 
lot, residential district; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends to the Navasota 

City Council, that the properties legally described as A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 6, PAR 
19, ACRES 67.50, A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 6, PAR 18, ACRES 23.52 and A0055-6 D 
TYLER, TRACT 19-1, ACRES 10.00, be rezoned as R-2: medium density, multi-dwelling 
unit, residential district; and 
 

WHEREAS, on the 25th day of November 2019, after notice as required by law, 
a public hearing was held before the Navasota City Council, a quorum being present on 
the occasion and said matter of rezoning being part of the agenda, an opportunity to 
present arguments for and against the proposed rezoning was held; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS THAT: 
 
SECTION 1. The Official Zoning Map of the City of Navasota is hereby amended to 
change the following property currently zoned as A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District 
to M-2: Heavy Industrial District: a 22.809 acre tract legally described as A0046 J 
MOORE, TRACT 4-3. 
 
SECTION 2. The Official Zoning Map of the City of Navasota is hereby amended to 
change the following properties currently zoned as A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District 
to R-1A: high density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district: a 
54 acre tract legally described as A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 21-1. 
 
SECTION 3. The Official Zoning Map of the City of Navasota is hereby amended to 
change the following properties currently zoned as A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District 
to R-2: medium density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district: a 67.50 acre tract 
legally described as A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 6, PAR 19, a 23.52 acre tract legally 



described as, A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 6, PAR 18, and a 10 acre tract legally described 
as A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 19-1. 
 
SECTION 4. That if any section, subsection, word, sentence or phrase of this 
Ordinance is held invalid, it shall not affect the remaining parts of this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 5. This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage, 
approval, and adoption on second reading.  
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 25th DAY OF 
NOVEMBER 2019. 
 
 
                                                                     _________________________ 
                                                                          BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING THIS 9TH DAY OF 
DECEMBER 2019. 
 
 
                                                                       ______________________ 
                                                                            BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Exhibit “A” 

 

 
 

R13769: A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 4-3, ACRES 22.809 
 

 
 



R13790: A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 21-1, ACRES 54.00 

 
 

R14377:  A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 6, PAR 18, ACRES 23.52 
R36854: A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 19-1, ACRES 10.00 

R14379: A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 6, PAR 19, ACRES 67.50 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 7. AGENDA DATE: November 25,
2019

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Conduct a public hearing to receive public comments and
testimony regarding the voluntary annexation request submitted
by James C. Hassell of a 102.4197 acre tract of land in the
James Whitesides Survey, A-62 and the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-
55, Grimes County, Texas.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The City received a petition for annexation from James C.
Hassell on October 23, 2019 requesting voluntary annexation
that consists of four (4) tracts of land containing 102.4197
acres. The area proposed for annexation is located on and along
the southwestern City limits line adjacent to the Pecan Lakes
Estates subdivision and Pecan Lakes golf course.

Public hearing opened at ________p.m.

Public hearing closed at ________p.m.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
none
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends conducting a public hearing to receive public
comments and testimony regarding the voluntary annexation
request submitted by James C. Hassell of an 102.4197 acre tract
of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-62 and the Daniel
Tyler Survey, A-55, Grimes County, Texas.
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Lupe Diosdado, Community Development
Director



1. Annexation Exhibit
2. Aerial View

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1573683342x_at.pdf
http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1573683034x123_at.pdf




 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 8. AGENDA DATE: November 25,
2019

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on an Annexation
Service Plan Agreement for the delivery of municipal services to
a 102.4197 acre tract proposed for annexation to the City of
Navasota.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Pursuant to the Local Government Code, Chapter 43, Section
43.0672, the City of Navasota has prepared this service plan
agreement for the delivery of municipal services to the territory
being proposed for annexation to the City. The area proposed
for annexation consists of four (4) tracts of land containing a
total of 102.4197 acres.

The property owner James C Hassell, approved and signed the
proposed service plan agreement on November 15, 2019.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
none
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the Annexation Service Plan
Agreement for the delivery of municipal services to a 102.4197
acre tract proposed for annexation to the City of Navasota.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Service Plan Agreement

Lupe Diosdado, Community Development
Director

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1573841306x_at.pdf










ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 9. AGENDA DATE: November 25,
2019

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on the first reading of
Ordinance No. 911-19, extending the boundary limits of the City
of Navasota, Texas, providing for the annexation of
approximately 102.4197 acre tract of land in the James
Whitesides Survey, A-62 and the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55,
Grimes County, Texas.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The City received a petition for annexation from James C.
Hassell on October 23, 2019 requesting voluntary annexation
that consists of four (4) tracts of land containing 102.4197
acres. The area proposed for annexation is located on and along
the southwestern City limits line adjacent to the Pecan Lakes
Estates subdivision and Pecan Lakes golf course.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
none
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the first reading of Ordinance No.
911-19, extending the boundary limits of the City of Navasota,
Texas providing for the annexation of approximately 102.4197
acre tract of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-62 and the
Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Grimes County, Texas.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance No. 911-19

Lupe Diosdado, Community Development
Director

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1574118140x_at.pdf


 

 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 911-19 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF EXTENDING THE BOUNDARY LIMITS OF 
THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR THE 
ANNEXATION OF APPROXIMATELY 102.4197 ACRES OF 
LAND, HEREINAFTER MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED, TO 
THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS FOR ALL MUNICIPAL 
PURPOSES; FINDING THAT ALL NECESSARY AND 
REQUIRED LEGAL CONDITIONS HAVE BEEN SATISFIED; 
PROVIDING THAT SUCH AREA SHALL BECOME A PART OF 
THE CITY AND THAT THE INHABITANTS THEREOF, IF ANY, 
SHALL BE ENTITLED TO THE RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES OF 
OTHER CITIZENS AND BE BOUND BY THE ACTS AND 
ORDINANCES NOW IN EFFECT AND TO BE HEREINAFTER 
ADOPTED; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Navasota, Texas is a Texas home-rule municipality 

as defined by the Texas Local Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City Charter and Chapter 43 of the Texas Local 

Government Code, V.T.C.A., authorize the City of Navasota to annex territory in 

accordance with the procedures provided for therein; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Navasota received a written request from the 

property owner requesting the annexation of the hereinafter described area; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to annex the area described hereinafter; and  

WHEREAS, the hereinafter described area lies within the extraterritorial 

jurisdiction of the City of Navasota; and 

WHEREAS, the area hereinafter described lies adjacent and contiguous 

to the present boundary limits of the City of Navasota; and 



 

 2 

WHEREAS, notice of the appropriate public hearing was published in a 

newspaper having general circulation in the City of Navasota, Texas and the 

public hearing was conducted and held in accordance with applicable law; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Navasota, Texas prepared a service plan for the 

extension of municipal services into the area to be annexed; and 

WHEREAS, all notices, publication and hearings have been duly given 

and held as required by law; and 

WHEREAS, institution of annexation proceedings occurred within the 

period of time as prescribed by law; Now Therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

NAVASOTA, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That the hereinafter described area of land is within the 

extraterritorial jurisdiction of, and is adjacent to and is contiguous to the present 

corporate limits of the City of Navasota, Texas, and the same is hereby, annexed 

to the City of Navasota, Texas for all municipal purposes and the corporate lines 

and limits of the City of Navasota, Texas are hereby extended to embrace the 

said area of land, which is described as follows: 

 

All that certain 102.4197 Acre tracts of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-

62, and Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Grimes County, Texas, being more particularly 

described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes.  



 

 3 

Section 2. That the inhabitants, if any, of the property hereby annexed 

to the City of Navasota, Texas shall be entitled to all the rights and privileges of 

said citizens of the City of Navasota, Texas, and shall be bound by the acts, 

ordinances, codes, resolutions and regulations of the City of Navasota, Texas. 

Section 3. That the Service Plan which is attached hereto as Exhibit “B” 

is hereby approved and incorporated herein as part of this Ordinance for all 

purposes. 

Section 4. That the official map and boundaries of the City of Navasota, 

Texas, heretofore adopted and amended be and is hereby amended so as to 

include the aforementioned areas as part of the City of Navasota, Texas. 

Section 5. That the City Secretary is hereby directed and authorized to 

perform or cause to be performed all acts necessary to amend the official map of 

the City of Navasota, Texas to add the territories hereby annexed as required by 

law. 

Section 6. That this Ordinance shall become effective after its passage. 

Section 7. That the Mayor is hereby directed and authorized to file a 

certified copy of this Ordinance in the Office of the County Clerk, and to perform 

all other acts necessary to notify the appropriate entities of the City’s annexation 

of territories by this Ordinance. 

Section 8. If any section, subsection, sentence, phrase, word, paragraph 

or provision of this Ordinance be found to be illegal, invalid or unconstitutional or 

if any portion of said property is incapable of being annexed by the City of 



 

 4 

Navasota, Texas, for any reason whatsoever, the adjudication shall not affect 

any other section, subsection, sentence, phrase, word, paragraph or provision of 

this Ordinance or the application of any other section, subsection, sentence, 

phrase, word, paragraph or provision of any other Ordinance of the City. The 

City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and 

applications of this Ordinance and would have annexed the valid property 

without the invalid part, and as to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are 

declared to be severable. 

Section 9. That the meetings at which this Ordinance was considered 

and enacted were open to the public as required by the Texas Open Meetings 

Act, and that notice of the time, place, and subject matter of the meetings was 

given as required by the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 25TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2019. 
 
 
                                                              ________________________ 
                                                              HON. BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 5 

 
PASSED ON SECOND AND FINAL READING THIS THE 9TH DAY OF 
DECEMBER, 2019. 
 
 
                                                              ________________________ 
                                                                HON. BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
        
 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 10. AGENDA DATE: November 25,
2019

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on the second reading
of Ordinance No. 907-19, amending Chapter 2 Animal Control of
the Code of Ordinances, City of Navasota, Texas.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The Navasota Animal Control Officer and the Navasota Police
Department have been reviewing Chapter 2 to update and
comply with current and applicable State law.  
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the second reading of Ordinance
No. 907-19, amending Chapter 2, Animal Control of the Code of
Ordinances, City of Navasota. 
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance No. 907-19

Mike Mize, Lieutenant

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1574179104x_at.pdf


1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 907-19 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS AMENDING CHAPTER 2, 
ANIMAL CONTROL, CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS PROVIDING 
FOR THE REGULATION OF ANIMALS WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS; PROVIDING FOR A 
SAVINGS AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING FOR PROPER NOTICE AND 
MEETINGS 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Navasota is authorized to adopt animal 
control regulations pursuant to Chapter 826 of the Texas Health and Safety Code, and is 
authorized to define and abate nuisances pursuant to Chapter 217 of the Texas Local 
Government Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, in order to enhance, promote and protect the health, safety and general 

welfare of the citizens of Navasota, Texas the City Council must from time to time amend 
and/or adopt new regulations; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds the following regulations to be reasonable and 

beneficial to the general health, safety and welfare of the citizens of Navasota; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NAVASOTA, TEXAS THAT: 
 
 

SECTION 1. 
 

Chapter 2, Animal Control, Article 2.01, Section 2.01.011 of the Code of Ordinances, City 
of Navasota, Texas, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 2.01.011     Fee for animals from outside city limits surrendered to animal 
shelter 
 
For any animal surrendered from outside the city limits when ownership has been determined, a 
fee of one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each animal is to be paid upon the surrender of said 
animal that is spayed or neutered.  A fee of one hundred and fifty dollars ($150.00) for each 
animal that is not spayed and/or neutered is to be paid upon the surrender of said animal. Upon 
payment of such fees, the animal control authority shall issue an official receipt for the amount 
paid. 

 
SECTION 2. 

 
Chapter 2, Animal Control, Article 2.01, Section 2.01.011.1 of the Code of Ordinances, 

City of Navasota, Texas, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

 



2 
 

Sec 2.01.011.1  Fee for animals from inside the city limits surrendered to animal 
shelter. 
 
For any animal surrendered from inside the city limits when ownership has been determined, a 
fee of thirty five dollars ($35.00) for each animal that is spayed/neutered is to be paid upon the 
surrender of said animal. A fee of sixty-five dollars ($65.00) for each animal that is not 
spayed/neutered is to be paid upon the surrender of said animal. Proof of residency in the city 
must be provided by sufficient identification with a city address along with a city utility bill (gas 
and/or water) with name and address matching the identification with a city address. 
 
 

SECTION 3. 
 

Chapter 2, Animal Control, Article 2.02, Section 2.02.045 of the Code of Ordinances, City 
of Navasota, Texas, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 2.02.045     Fees 
 
The animal control officer shall collect a fee equal to the amount charged to the city by the 
designated holding facility.   
 

SECTION 4. 
 

Chapter 2, Animal Control, Article 2.02, Section 2.02.046 of the Code of Ordinances, City 
of Navasota, Texas, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 2.02.046     Taking livestock from animal shelter without permission 
 
It shall be unlawful for any person to take any livestock that has been impounded by the animal 
control authority out of the animal shelter or the designated holding facility without the 
permission of the animal control authority and paying the applicable fees and charges. 
 

SECTION 5. 
 

Chapter 2, Animal Control, Article 2.03, Section 2.03.004 of the Code of Ordinances, City 
of Navasota, Texas, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 2.03.004     Failure to have animal vaccinated 
 
(a)     A person commits an offense if he intentionally or knowingly owns or harbors an animal 
that has not been immunized by a licensed veterinarian with an antirabies vaccine in the 
preceding twelve (12) months. 
 
(b)     In any prosecution authorized by this section, where proof is presented that the animal 
was not registered indicating rabies immunization within the antirabies vaccine under the 
specific vaccination timeframe: 
 



3 
 

(1)     It shall be an affirmative defense to any prosecution under this section if the 
person accused of the offense presents a certificate of vaccination issued by the 
veterinarian administering the antirabies vaccine on a date not more than twelve (12) 
months prior to such date of the offense. 

 
(2)     It shall be an affirmative defense to any prosecution under this section if the 
animal was less than four (4) months old on the date of the offense. 
(3)   It shall be an affirmative defense to any prosecution under this section if the 
person accused of the offense presents a certificate of vaccination of the animal with a 
thirty-six (36) month/3 year antirabies vaccine issued by the veterinarian administering 
the antirabies vaccine on a date not more than thirty-six (36) month/3 years prior to 
such date of the offense.  

 
SECTION 6. 

 
Chapter 2, Animal Control, Article 2.03, Section 2.03.006 of the Code of Ordinances, City 

of Navasota, Texas, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
 Sec. 2.03.006     Reporting of suspected rabid animals; quarantine procedures 
 
(a)     Any person having knowledge of an animal that: 
 

(1)     Bites, scratches or attacks a person; 
 

(2)     Has rabies or symptoms of rabies; 
 

(3)     Is exposed to but evidences no apparent symptoms of rabies; shall report the 
incident to the animal control authority as soon as possible, but not later than twenty-
four (24) hours from the time of the incident. 

 
(b)     The owner of the biting animal will place that animal in quarantine as prescribed herein 
under the supervision of the animal control authority. 
 
(c)     The animal control authority will investigate each bite incident, utilizing standardized 
reporting forms provided by the department of state health services. 
 
(d)     Humans bitten by rodents, rabbits, birds and reptiles are excluded from only the 
reporting requirements of this section. 
 
(e)     When a dog or cat which has bitten a human has been identified, the owner will be 
required to produce the animal for ten (10) days' confinement at the owner's expense. Refusal 
to produce said dog or cat constitutes a violation of this section, and each day of such refusal 
constitutes a separate and individual violation. The ten-day observation period will begin on the 
day of the biting incident. The animal must be placed in the animal control facilities specified for 
this purpose. 
 



4 
 

(f)     No wild animal will be placed in quarantine. All wild animals involved in biting incidents 
will be humanely destroyed in such a manner that the brain is not mutilated. The brain shall be 
submitted to a TDH-certified laboratory for rabies diagnosis. 
 
(g)     At the expiration of the quarantine period, the quarantined animal may be reclaimed by 
the owner upon satisfaction of applicable licensing and payment of all fees. If the animal is not 
reclaimed within seventy-two (72) hours, it will be humanely destroyed. The owner may 
surrender the animal to animal control facility to be humanely destroyed.  
 

SECTION 7. 
 

Chapter 2, Animal Control, Article 2.04, Section 2.04.001 of the Code of Ordinances, City 
of Navasota, Texas, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 2.04.001     Dog and cat registration 
 
(a)     All dogs and cats shall be registered with a microchip after payment of a fee of twenty 
dollars ($20.00). The owner must present proof of the required animal vaccination(s) within 
seventy-two (72) hours of registration. A record of all microchips issued by the animal control 
authority shall be maintained and kept for a period of ten (10) years in the local database 
maintained by the Navasota Police Department.  
 
(b)     It shall be a condition of issuance of registration for an animal establishment that the 
licensing authority shall be permitted to inspect any and all animals and the premises where 
such animals are kept at any reasonable time during normal business hours.  

 
SECTION 8. 

 
Chapter 2, Animal Control, Article 2.04, Section 2.04.002 of the Code of Ordinances, City 

of Navasota, Texas, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 2.04.002     Animal establishment permit 
 
(a)     No person shall operate an animal establishment without first obtaining a permit in 
compliance with this section. 
 
(b)     The permit period shall begin with the first day of the fiscal year and shall run for one (1) 
year. Renewal applications for permits may be made within sixty (60) days prior to the 
expiration date. Applications for a permit to establish a new animal establishment under the 
provisions of this chapter may be made at any time. 
 
(c)     Annual animal establishment permits shall be issued upon payment of the applicable first-
time annual fee of two hundred and fifty dollars ($250.00) and a renewal fee of one hundred 
dollars ($100.00) each year thereafter. 
 
(d)     A person who maintains a kennel of six (6) or more dogs or cats for breeding purposes 
shall pay an annual permit fee. Every facility regulated by this article shall be considered a 



5 
 

separate enterprise requiring an individual permit and inspected yearly by the designated 
animal control authority.  
 

SECTION 9. 
 

Chapter 2, Animal Control, Article 2.04, Section 2.04.003 of the Code of Ordinances, City 
of Navasota, Texas, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 2.04.003     Hobby permit for keeping more than four dogs and cats 
 
(a)     It shall be unlawful to keep or harbor more than four (4) dogs or cats or any combination 
thereof, not to exceed a combined total of four (4) such animals four (4) months of age or 
older, on any premises utilized for a residential purpose, except as provided for herein. 
 
(b)     Bona fide raisers and breeders of dogs or cats strictly for a hobby shall make application 
with the animal control authority for permission to keep or harbor more than four (4) dogs or 
cats or a combination thereof. The animal control authority shall give permission to the 
applicant upon the following information or conditions being satisfied: 
 

(1)     That the applicant observes this chapter in full, with no previous violations; 
 

(2)     The purpose for the keeping or harboring of the dogs and cats; 
 

(3)     That the dogs and cats are to be housed in cages or pens inside a residence or 
completely enclosed area on the premises; 

 
(4)     That the dogs and cats are to be kept or harbored so as not to be a nuisance or 
detriment to adjoining or adjacent neighbors; 

 
(5)     That the dogs and cats shall not bark or howl excessively or create noises that 
cause the peace and quiet of the neighborhood or the adjacent premises to be 
disturbed; 

 
(6)     That the cages or pens are to be maintained in a sanitary condition so as not to 
create any hazards to the general health and welfare of the community or create any 
offensive odors to the general health and welfare of the community. 

 
(c)     The animal control authority or his/her duly designated representative, upon being 
satisfied that the above information has been furnished and the conditions satisfied, upon 
payment of a one hundred twenty-five dollar ($125.00) permit fee, shall issue a permit for one 
(1) year to the applicant. This permit may be revoked at any time upon any of the conditions 
and requirements being violated. 
 

SECTION 10. 
 

Chapter 2, Animal Control, Article 2.05, Section 2.05.004 of the Code of Ordinances, City 
of Navasota, Texas, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 



6 
 

Sec. 2.05.004     Impoundment generally; authority to destroy certain animals 
 
(a)     It shall be the duty of the animal control authority, police or other designee of the city to: 
 

(1)     Impound any stray animal found running at-large within the corporate limits; 
 

(2)     Impound any animal which is diseased and endangers thereby the health of a 
person or another animal; 

 
(3)     Impound any animal which has bitten a human or which has acted in a vicious 
manner as described herein; 

 
(4)     Humanely destroy an animal posing an imminent danger to persons or property 
under circumstances of emergency or an unclaimed animal held in excess of seventy-
two (72) hours; 

 
(5)     Humanely destroy an animal that is injured to a degree presenting little or no 
likelihood of recovery as deemed by a licensed veterinarian or other authorized person, 
after reasonable attempt to contact the owner of the animal. 

 
(b)     If an animal running at-large is found upon the premises of any person, the owner or 
occupant thereof shall have the right to confine the animal temporarily in a humane fashion 
pending notification and response by the animal control authority or other authorized person. 
When so notified, it shall be the duty of the animal control authority to take possession and 
impound the animal at the city animal shelter in accordance with this chapter. 
 
(c)     All animals impounded at the animal shelter shall be held for a minimum of seventy-two 
(72) hours, during which time the owner, upon satisfactory proof to the animal control authority 
of ownership and of inoculation of the animal for rabies as required by this chapter within the 
twelve (12) months immediately preceding the date of such redemption, may redeem the 
owner’s dog or cat upon the payment of an impoundment fee of twenty five dollars ($25.00) if 
not microchipped, or twenty dollars ($20.00) if microchipped, for the first impoundment, twenty 
five dollars ($25.00) for the second impoundment and fifty dollars ($50.00) for each 
impoundment thereafter, as long as the animal is spayed/neutered. If the animal is not spayed 
or neutered on the third impoundment, the impoundment fee will be one hundred dollars 
($100.00), which includes the fee charged to spay/neuter the animal. A boarding fee of five 
dollars ($5.00) per day per animal must be paid upon redemption for care of animals, and all 
other fees provided by this chapter. Proof of inoculation must be presented to the animal 
control authority within seventy-two (72) hours after the release of such animal. Failure to do 
so shall constitute a misdemeanor, and appropriate charges may be filed against the owner for 
violation of this chapter and any permit issued pursuant to this chapter may be revoked subject 
to appeal as provided by this chapter. 
 
(d)     The animal control authority and any police officer shall have the authority to impound 
any dog found at-large in the city, and shall have the authority while in pursuit, subject to 
applicable legal requirements and constitutional requirements, to enter onto private property to 
apprehend said animal. It shall be unlawful for any person to hamper or interfere with any 
animal control authority or police officer of the city while enforcing any provision of this chapter, 



7 
 

and they are authorized to issue a citation to any person who does hamper or interfere with any 
animal control authority or police officer in the performance of their duties. 
 
(e)     Should the owner of any dog that is being pursued or that has been caught present 
himself to the animal control authority or police officer of the city who has apprehended or is 
attempting to apprehend the animal, such officer may return the dog forthwith to the owner 
unless the dog is acting viciously or has bitten any human or other animal, in which case it shall 
be impounded as provided elsewhere in this chapter. If the animal is released to its owner, the 
owner shall be issued citations for each violation that the animal control authority or police 
officer deems were committed by such owner. 
 
(f)     An animal control authority or police officer is authorized to employ all humane means of 
capturing any dog or cat found to be at-large in violation of any ordinance of the city. This shall 
include, but not be limited to, the use of cages with snap-shut doors in which food and water 
shall be provided. Persons owning or in control of property may request that such cages be 
placed on their property to assist in capturing animals trespassing thereon. Persons who refuse 
to allow such cages to be placed on their property shall not be considered aggrieved sufficiently 
to warrant the officer of the city otherwise exerting maximum effort to capture animals of which 
they may have complained. Such cages may also be placed as necessary upon any city-owned 
property or other public property where permission of the controlling body has been obtained. 
The removal of an animal from such cage other than by a duly authorized agent of the city, and 
the act of tampering with or damaging such a cage, shall be deemed a misdemeanor. Each 
cage shall bear notice to this effect. 
 

SECTION 11. 
 

Chapter 2, Animal Control, Article 2.05, Section 2.05.005 of the Code of Ordinances, City 
of Navasota, Texas, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 2.05.005     Adoption of impounded animals 
 
The animal control authority shall be authorized to place for adoption any animal impounded by 
the city under the following conditions: 
 

(1)     The animal control authority shall be the sole judge as to whether an animal is 
healthy enough for adoption and its health and age adequate for vaccination. However, 
such decision by the animal control authority shall not constitute a warranty of the 
health or age of the animal. 

 
(2)     For animals adoption fees, see most recent City resolution establishing said 
adoption fees, which amount shall include the registration of said animal. 

 
(3)     In addition to the adoption fee, if said animal is not vaccinated, the adopting 
person shall present to the animal control authority a current vaccination certificate from 
any veterinarian within seventy-two (72) hours, excluding weekends and/or holidays, for 
each adopted animal. Failure to obtain the vaccination within seventy-two (72) hours of 
the adoption date shall authorize the re-impoundment of the animal. 
 



8 
 

SECTION 12. 
 

Appendix A, Fee Schedule, Article A11.000 Animal Shelter, Section A11.001 Pet 
Adoption, of the Code of Ordinances, City of Navasota, Texas, is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 
 
Sec. A11.001     Pet adoption 

(a)    Dogs 6 months or older: $70.00. 

(b)    Puppies younger than 6 months: $80.00. 

(c)    Cats 6 months or older: $60.00. 

(d)     Kittens younger than 6 months: $70.00. 

Micro chipping – if animal is already micro chipped - $10.00 shall be deducted from fee. 
 
Fee includes: dewormer, vaccinations (DHLPD), flea dip, spay/neuter, food, and other costs. 
 

SECTION 13. 
 

Appendix A, Fee Schedule, Article A11.000 Animal Shelter, is hereby amended by 
repealing Section A11.002 Surrender fees and Section A11.003 Fee to bond animal out of 
pound, in their entirety, Code of Ordinances, City of Navasota, Texas. 

 
SECTION 14. 

SAVINGS CLAUSE 
 

All provisions of any ordinance, resolution or other action of the City in conflict with this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent they are in conflict. Any remaining portions of said 
ordinances, resolutions or other actions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

SECTION 15. 
SEVERABILITY 

 
Should any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance be declared 

unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, it is expressly provided that any 
and all remaining portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. The City 
Council hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, 
sentences and clauses and phrases remaining should any provision be declared unconstitutional 
or invalid. 
 

SECTION 16. 
REPEALER 

 
Any other ordinance or parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are hereby 

expressly repealed. 



9 
 

SECTION 17. 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption and publication as required by law. 

 
SECTION 18. 

 
PROPER NOTICE AND MEETINGS 

 
It is hereby officially found and determined that the meetings at which this Ordinance 

was passed were open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place and 
purpose of said meetings were given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the 
Texas Government Code. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 12TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 
2019.  
  
  
                                                     ________________________ 
                                                            BERT MILLER, MAYOR  
  
 
ATTEST:  
  
______________________________  
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY  
    
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON SECOND READING THIS 9TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2019.  
  
                                                     ________________________ 
                                                            BERT MILLER, MAYOR  
  
 
ATTEST:  
  
______________________________  
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY  

 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 11. AGENDA DATE: November 25,
2019

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Executive Session: The City Council shall meet in
Executive Session as permitted by Section 551.087, Texas
Government Code, for the purpose of deliberation regarding
economic development negotiations with Kolkhorst Development
Navasota, LLC regarding the development of commercial and
other improvements to property located on E. Washington
Avenue, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.

 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The City Council convened in Executive Session at ___ p.m.

 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends the City Council convene into Executive
Session.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Development Agreement

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1574202978x_at.pdf


 1 

 Economic Development Agreement 

 
This Economic Development Agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and between the 

CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS, a Texas home-rule municipality (“City”) and 

KOLKHORST DEVELOPMENT NAVASOTA, LLC, a Texas limited liability company 

(“Developer”). 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized by §380.001, et seq., Texas Local Government Code, 

to promote state and local economic development and to stimulate business and 

commercial activity within the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, Developer owns multiple tracts of land in the City more particularly 

described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part of hereof for all purposes 

(“Property”), generally located near the intersection of North Post Oak Street and E. 

Washington Avenue (also known as State Highway No. 105); and  

 

WHEREAS, Developer intends to develop a restaurant and other commercial space on 

the Property, install sidewalk pavers, street lighting and planter boxes to match the design 

and character of such existing improvements and items located in the downtown area, and 

construct a new façade on the existing structure where a Subway, a dry cleaners and 

Kolkhorst Development are currently located (collectively the “Project”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Developer has advised the City that a key contributing factor that would 

enable the Developer to develop the Project, said Project being more fully described in 

Exhibit “B” attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes, would be an 

agreement by the City to provide an economic development grant to Developer to 

incentivize development and construction of the Project to align with the current 

Washington Avenue design standards; and 

 

WHEREAS, Developer has requested that the economic development grant to Developer 

consist of the reimbursement a portion of the City’s portion of the sales and use tax 

generated from the new Burger King restaurant location at 1605 E. Washington Ave., 

Navasota, Grimes County, TX 77868; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Project is anticipated to result in the creation of jobs, capital investment, 

ad valorem tax revenues to the City, sales and use tax revenues to the City, and utility 

revenues to the City; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that providing an economic development grant to 

Developer in accordance with this Agreement will further the objectives of the City, will 

benefit the City and citizens, and will stimulate and benefit the local and regional 

economy; and 

 



 2 

WHEREAS, such economic development grant is being provided to assist Developer 

with development costs as a City economic development programs authorized by Chapter 

380, Texas Local Government Code; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants, agreements, representations, 

and warranties set forth herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt 

and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, City and Developer agree as follows: 

 

AGREEMENTS 

 

Section 1.  Recitals 

 

 The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein by reference, as if fully set 

forth. 

 

Section 2.  City Requirements 

 

In consideration of Developer’s: 1) construction of at least One Million Two 

Hundred Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($1,200,000.00) of building and other 

improvements to said Property, excluding equipment, machinery, and other 

personal property, for the purpose of operating a restaurant on said Property; 2) 

Developer’s timely payment to the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts of all 

sales tax generated from the Burger King Restaurant located on the Property; and 

3) Developer’s agreement to perform the other acts and obligations hereinafter 

described, City agrees, subject to the terms and conditions contained herein: 

 

(a) To reimburse Developer an amount of money equal to a percentage of annual 

sales and use taxes generated from the new Burger King restaurant location at 

1605 E. Washington Ave., Navasota, Grimes County, TX 77868 and paid by 

Developer to the City (and actually collected by the City) subsequent to the 

effective date of this Agreement, using the following schedule, commencing 

on the first date of collection of any sales and use tax amount generated from 

the new Burger King restaurant location and continuing for Five (5) years 

thereafter, at which time this Agreement shall terminate:  Year one, forty 

percent (40%) of said sales and use taxes shall be reimbursed to the 

Developer; Year two, thirty five percent (35%) of said sales and use taxes 

shall be reimbursed to the Developer; Year three, thirty percent (30%) of said 

sales and use taxes shall be reimbursed to the Developer; Year four, twenty 

five percent (25%) of said sales and use taxes shall be reimbursed to the 

Developer; Year five, twenty five percent (25%) of said sales and use taxes 

shall be reimbursed to the Developer. Notwithstanding any term or provision 

of this Agreement, the maximum amount of sales and use tax to be reimbursed 

to the Developer pursuant to this Agreement shall not exceed Twenty 

Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($20,000.00). Developer acknowledges and 

agrees that the purpose of the City entering into this Agreement is to 

encourage the development of the Property, and, therefore, Developer agrees 



 3 

to develop the Property and continue business operations during the term that 

this Agreement remains in effect. 

(b) To reimburse Developer for the actual material-only cost of the sidewalk 

pavers, street lights and planter boxes installed by the Developer, being more 

fully described in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and made a part hereof for all 

purposes. 

 

Section 3.  Developer’s Requirements 

 

 In consideration of the City agreeing to perform the foregoing, Developer agrees: 

 

(a) To construct a Burger King restaurant on the Property, develop a restaurant 

and other commercial space on the Property, install sidewalk pavers, street 

lighting and planter boxes to match the design and character of such existing 

improvements and items located in the downtown area, and construct a new 

façade on the existing structure where a Subway, a dry cleaners and Kolkhorst 

Development are currently located. The restaurant shall be opened to the 

public and begin to conduct business no later than one (1) year from the 

effective date of this Agreement. No sales tax or other reimbursement 

payments shall be made by the City to the Developer until the improvements 

required to be made by the Developer in accordance with this Agreement are 

completed. Developer shall certify in writing to the City the costs of 

construction of said improvements.  Such certification shall be deemed to be 

incorporated by reference herein and made a part hereof for all purposes; 

(b) To construct the Burger King restaurant to include the amenities described on 

the attached Exhibit “C.” Prior to beginning construction, the Developer must 

obtain the City’s approval of the construction plans so that the City is satisfied 

that the amenities will be constructed as represented by the Developer; 

(c) To operate a Burger King restaurant on the Property during the time this 

Agreement is in effect; 

(d) To make a total investment of at least One Million Two Hundred Thousand 

and No/100 Dollars ($1,200,000.00) in building and other improvements to 

the Property; 

(e) To employ an average of ten (10) FTEs per year at the Burger King restaurant 

facility on the Property upon the commencement of operating the restaurant 

and thereafter to allow a thirty percent (30%) grace factor as a condition of 

receiving the sales and use tax reimbursement payments from the City 

pursuant to Section 2(a) above. During any year in which this Agreement is in 

effect, in the event that the average FTEs drops below the grace factor number 

of seven (7) FTEs, Developer will forfeit the sales and use tax reimbursement 

payments described in Section 2(a) above for that year without affecting any 

other act or incentive agreed to by City. 

(f) To keep current in the payment of any and all taxes owed to any taxing 

jurisdiction in which the Property is located; and 

(g) To keep current in the payment of any and all charges and fees for utility 

services provided by the City to the Property. 



 4 

 

Section 4.  Recapture/Termination 

 

In the event that Developer begins operating a Burger King restaurant on the Property, 

but subsequently discontinues operating a restaurant on the Property for any reason, 

excepting fire, explosion, or other casualty or accident or natural disaster or other event 

beyond the reasonable control of Developer for a period of 180 days during the term of 

this Agreement, then in such event this Agreement shall terminate. The burden shall be 

upon Developer to prove to the satisfaction of the City that the discontinuance of the 

operation of the restaurant on the Property was as a result of fire, explosion, or other 

casualty or accident or natural disaster or other event beyond the control of Developer. In 

the event Developer meets this burden and the City is satisfied that the discontinuance of 

the operation of the restaurant on the Property was the result of events beyond the control 

of Developer, then Developer shall have a period of one (1) year in which to resume the 

operation of the restaurant on the Property. In the event that Developer fails to resume the 

operation of the restaurant on the Property within one (1) year, then this Agreement shall 

terminate. The one (1) year time period, hereinabove mentioned, shall commence upon 

written notification from the City to Developer. 

 

In the event that Developer allows ad valorem taxes on real property or business personal 

property taxes owed to the City or utility service payments to become delinquent and fails 

to timely and properly follow the legal procedures for their protest or contest, then in 

such event, this Agreement shall terminate.  

 

In accordance with Chapter 2264, Texas Government Code, Developer certifies that 

Developer, or a branch, division, or department of Developer does not and will not 

knowingly employ an undocumented worker. Developer further certifies that in the event 

that Developer, or a branch, division, or department of Developer, is convicted of a 

violation under 8 U.S.C. Section 1324a(f), Developer shall repay the amounts previously 

paid to Developer by the City pursuant to this Agreement, with interest, at the rate and 

according to the other terms provided herein. Such a conviction shall be cause for this 

Agreement to terminate. 

 

In the event that the City determines that Developer is in default of any of the terms or 

conditions contained in this Agreement, then in such event, the City shall give Developer 

thirty (30) days written notice to cure such default. Except as provided in Section 3(e) 

herein, in the event such default is not cured to the satisfaction of the City within the 

thirty (30) days notice period, then this Agreement shall terminate.  

 

The date of termination as that term is used in this subsection shall, in every instance, be 

the thirtieth (30th) day after the day the City sends notice of default to the address shown 

in this Agreement to Developer. Should the default be cured by Developer within the 

thirty (30) day notice period, Developer shall be responsible for so advising the City and 

obtaining a release from the notice of default from the City, failing in which, the 

Agreement may be considered by the City to be terminated. 

 



 5 

In every case of termination set forth above: (1) the City shall determine in its sole 

discretion whether default has occurred by Developer in the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement, which determination shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed; (2) 

Developer will forfeit any and all payments it has received under this Agreement; and, 

(3) Developer shall be responsible for repayment to the City of any payment provided to 

Developer under the terms of this Agreement during the period that this Agreement was 

in effect. Repayment shall be made to the City within sixty (60) days of the termination 

of this Agreement as provided herein. Amounts required to be repaid to the City pursuant 

to this Agreement shall be repaid with interest, bearing an interest rate of ten percent 

(10%) per annum, said interest accruing beginning on the date of the original sales and 

use tax reimbursement payment from the City to Developer. 

 

Section 5.  Certification of Compliance by Developer 

 

On or before July 1 of each year that this Agreement is in effect, Developer shall certify 

in writing to the City its compliance with all provisions of this Agreement. Such 

certification shall include any and all documentation establishing that Developer has met 

the annual employment requirement for the previous year and that all taxes related to the 

Property have been paid in full as required by law. The City, at any reasonable time, shall 

have the right to review any and all records of Developer related to the provisions of this 

Agreement. 

 

At all reasonable times during the term of this Agreement, the City, and its respective 

designees, may inspect the improvements and the Property in order to verify the 

construction, workmanship, materials, installations, and maintenance involved in or 

incident to, and operation of, the project are performed in substantial compliance with the 

applicable building permits, governmental regulations, and the terms and conditions of 

this Agreement. 

 

Section 6.  Term 

 

This Agreement shall remain in effect until the earlier of: 1) the date the City has made 

all reimbursement payments to the Developer as required by Section 2(a) of this 

Agreement; or 2) the expiration of five (5) years beginning on the first date of collection 

of any sales and use tax amount generated from the new Burger King restaurant, at which 

time this Agreement shall terminate, unless otherwise terminated in accordance with 

another provision of this Agreement. 

 

Section 7.  Entire Agreement 

 

 This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the City and Developer 

with respect to the transactions contemplated herein.  This Agreement may be amended, 

altered, or revoked only by written instrument signed by the City and Developer. 

 

 

 



 6 

Section 8.  Successors and Assigns 

 

 This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties, their 

respective successors and assigns.  Developer may assign all or part of its rights and 

obligations hereunder only upon prior written approval of the City, which approval shall 

not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

 

Section 9.  Notices 

 

 Any notice and/or statement required and permitted to be delivered shall be 

deemed delivered by depositing same in the United States mail, certified with return 

receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to the appropriate party at the following 

addresses or at such addresses provided by the parties in writing hereafter: 

 

 Developer:   Kolkhorst Development Navasota, LLC 

     1801 Shady Lane 

     Brenham, Texas 77833 

 

 City:    City Manager, City of Navasota 

     P.O. Box 910 

     Navasota, Texas 77868-0910 

 

Section 10.  Interpretation 

 

 Regardless of the actual drafter of this Agreement, this Agreement shall in the 

event of a dispute over its meaning or application, be interpreted fairly and reasonably, 

and neither more strongly for or against either party. 

 

Section 11.  Applicable Law 

 

 This Agreement is made and shall be construed and interpreted under the laws of 

the State of Texas and exclusive venue for any cause of action, claim, dispute, or legal 

proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall lie in Grimes County, Texas. 

 

Section 12.  Attorney’s Fees 

 

 The parties hereto agree that the prevailing party in any dispute between the parties 

arising out of this Agreement shall be entitled to recover its attorney’s fees. 

 

Section 13.  Severability 

 

 In the event that any provision of this Agreement is illegal, invalid, or 

unenforceable under present or future laws, then, and in that event, it is the intention of 

the parties hereto that the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and 

it is also the intention of the parties to this Agreement that in lieu of each clause or 

provision that is found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, a provision be added to 



 7 

this Agreement which is legal, valid and enforceable and is as similar in terms as possible 

to the provision found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable. 

 

Section 14.  Mutual Assistance 

 

 City and Developer agree to do all things reasonably necessary or appropriate to 

carry out the terms and provisions of this Agreement and to reasonably aid and assist 

each other in carrying out such terms and provisions. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement to be 

effective on the____________. 

 

 

THE CITY OF NAVASOTA   ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ ____________________________________ 

Hon. Bert Miller, Mayor   Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary  

 

 

 

Kolkhorst Development Navasota, LLC ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ ____________________________________ 

Jim Kolkhorst, President   Printed Name: 

      Title: 



 8 

 

Exhibit A 

 

JONES ADDITION, BLOCK 2, LOT 1R REPLAT (Burger King) 

 

JONES ADDITION, BLOCK 2, LOT 10, SHOPPING CENTER (Subway, Dry Cleaners, 

Kolkhorst) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 9 

 

Exhibit B 

Pavers 

 
Street Lamps 

 



 10 

Planter Boxes 

 
Quantity Item Cost 

2 VP72x30x30 $895.00 

1 Freight $979.00 

TOTAL: $2,769.00 

 

Layout 

 

Total Material Costs: $17,700.21 

 

 



 11 

Exhibit C 

 

Description of restaurant amenities  

 

New quick-serve, single-story Burger King restaurant, 4,320 square feet in size, with 

drive-through service, and parking spaces as required by the applicable building code(s). 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 12. AGENDA DATE: November 25,
2019

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Reconvene in open session.

 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The time is ____________p.m.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 13. AGENDA DATE: November 25,
2019

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on Executive Session
Item relating to Executive Session as permitted by Section
551.087, Texas Government Code, on approval of a Chapter 380
agreement with Kolkhorst Development Navasota, LLC regarding
the development of commercial and other improvements to
property located on E. Washington Avenue, Navasota, Grimes
County, Texas.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Jim Kolkhorst approached staff while working on plans for the
Burger King and said he would also like to improve the façade of
the building he owns where Subway and other businesses are
located. The improvements would not be able to occur without
some type of incentive according to Mr. Kolkhorst. Staff and
Legal Counsel have worked with him on a Chapter 380
agreement to utilize a portion of the sales tax generated from
the Burger King store and apply it to the overall improvements
of the area, such as façade improvements and construction of a
dumpster enclosure for the Subway site and sidewalk and
lighting improvements for the Burger King site to match the
downtown streetscapes.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of a Chapter 380 agreement with
Kolkhorst Development Navasota, LLC regarding the
development of commercial and other improvements to property
located on E. Washington Avenue, Navasota, Grimes County,
Texas.
 

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



ATTACHMENTS:
1. 380 Development Agreement

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1574203019x_at.pdf


 1 

 Economic Development Agreement 

 
This Economic Development Agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and between the 

CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS, a Texas home-rule municipality (“City”) and 

KOLKHORST DEVELOPMENT NAVASOTA, LLC, a Texas limited liability company 

(“Developer”). 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized by §380.001, et seq., Texas Local Government Code, 

to promote state and local economic development and to stimulate business and 

commercial activity within the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, Developer owns multiple tracts of land in the City more particularly 

described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part of hereof for all purposes 

(“Property”), generally located near the intersection of North Post Oak Street and E. 

Washington Avenue (also known as State Highway No. 105); and  

 

WHEREAS, Developer intends to develop a restaurant and other commercial space on 

the Property, install sidewalk pavers, street lighting and planter boxes to match the design 

and character of such existing improvements and items located in the downtown area, and 

construct a new façade on the existing structure where a Subway, a dry cleaners and 

Kolkhorst Development are currently located (collectively the “Project”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Developer has advised the City that a key contributing factor that would 

enable the Developer to develop the Project, said Project being more fully described in 

Exhibit “B” attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes, would be an 

agreement by the City to provide an economic development grant to Developer to 

incentivize development and construction of the Project to align with the current 

Washington Avenue design standards; and 

 

WHEREAS, Developer has requested that the economic development grant to Developer 

consist of the reimbursement a portion of the City’s portion of the sales and use tax 

generated from the new Burger King restaurant location at 1605 E. Washington Ave., 

Navasota, Grimes County, TX 77868; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Project is anticipated to result in the creation of jobs, capital investment, 

ad valorem tax revenues to the City, sales and use tax revenues to the City, and utility 

revenues to the City; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that providing an economic development grant to 

Developer in accordance with this Agreement will further the objectives of the City, will 

benefit the City and citizens, and will stimulate and benefit the local and regional 

economy; and 

 



 2 

WHEREAS, such economic development grant is being provided to assist Developer 

with development costs as a City economic development programs authorized by Chapter 

380, Texas Local Government Code; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants, agreements, representations, 

and warranties set forth herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt 

and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, City and Developer agree as follows: 

 

AGREEMENTS 

 

Section 1.  Recitals 

 

 The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein by reference, as if fully set 

forth. 

 

Section 2.  City Requirements 

 

In consideration of Developer’s: 1) construction of at least One Million Two 

Hundred Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($1,200,000.00) of building and other 

improvements to said Property, excluding equipment, machinery, and other 

personal property, for the purpose of operating a restaurant on said Property; 2) 

Developer’s timely payment to the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts of all 

sales tax generated from the Burger King Restaurant located on the Property; and 

3) Developer’s agreement to perform the other acts and obligations hereinafter 

described, City agrees, subject to the terms and conditions contained herein: 

 

(a) To reimburse Developer an amount of money equal to a percentage of annual 

sales and use taxes generated from the new Burger King restaurant location at 

1605 E. Washington Ave., Navasota, Grimes County, TX 77868 and paid by 

Developer to the City (and actually collected by the City) subsequent to the 

effective date of this Agreement, using the following schedule, commencing 

on the first date of collection of any sales and use tax amount generated from 

the new Burger King restaurant location and continuing for Five (5) years 

thereafter, at which time this Agreement shall terminate:  Year one, forty 

percent (40%) of said sales and use taxes shall be reimbursed to the 

Developer; Year two, thirty five percent (35%) of said sales and use taxes 

shall be reimbursed to the Developer; Year three, thirty percent (30%) of said 

sales and use taxes shall be reimbursed to the Developer; Year four, twenty 

five percent (25%) of said sales and use taxes shall be reimbursed to the 

Developer; Year five, twenty five percent (25%) of said sales and use taxes 

shall be reimbursed to the Developer. Notwithstanding any term or provision 

of this Agreement, the maximum amount of sales and use tax to be reimbursed 

to the Developer pursuant to this Agreement shall not exceed Twenty 

Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($20,000.00). Developer acknowledges and 

agrees that the purpose of the City entering into this Agreement is to 

encourage the development of the Property, and, therefore, Developer agrees 



 3 

to develop the Property and continue business operations during the term that 

this Agreement remains in effect. 

(b) To reimburse Developer for the actual material-only cost of the sidewalk 

pavers, street lights and planter boxes installed by the Developer, being more 

fully described in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and made a part hereof for all 

purposes. 

 

Section 3.  Developer’s Requirements 

 

 In consideration of the City agreeing to perform the foregoing, Developer agrees: 

 

(a) To construct a Burger King restaurant on the Property, develop a restaurant 

and other commercial space on the Property, install sidewalk pavers, street 

lighting and planter boxes to match the design and character of such existing 

improvements and items located in the downtown area, and construct a new 

façade on the existing structure where a Subway, a dry cleaners and Kolkhorst 

Development are currently located. The restaurant shall be opened to the 

public and begin to conduct business no later than one (1) year from the 

effective date of this Agreement. No sales tax or other reimbursement 

payments shall be made by the City to the Developer until the improvements 

required to be made by the Developer in accordance with this Agreement are 

completed. Developer shall certify in writing to the City the costs of 

construction of said improvements.  Such certification shall be deemed to be 

incorporated by reference herein and made a part hereof for all purposes; 

(b) To construct the Burger King restaurant to include the amenities described on 

the attached Exhibit “C.” Prior to beginning construction, the Developer must 

obtain the City’s approval of the construction plans so that the City is satisfied 

that the amenities will be constructed as represented by the Developer; 

(c) To operate a Burger King restaurant on the Property during the time this 

Agreement is in effect; 

(d) To make a total investment of at least One Million Two Hundred Thousand 

and No/100 Dollars ($1,200,000.00) in building and other improvements to 

the Property; 

(e) To employ an average of ten (10) FTEs per year at the Burger King restaurant 

facility on the Property upon the commencement of operating the restaurant 

and thereafter to allow a thirty percent (30%) grace factor as a condition of 

receiving the sales and use tax reimbursement payments from the City 

pursuant to Section 2(a) above. During any year in which this Agreement is in 

effect, in the event that the average FTEs drops below the grace factor number 

of seven (7) FTEs, Developer will forfeit the sales and use tax reimbursement 

payments described in Section 2(a) above for that year without affecting any 

other act or incentive agreed to by City. 

(f) To keep current in the payment of any and all taxes owed to any taxing 

jurisdiction in which the Property is located; and 

(g) To keep current in the payment of any and all charges and fees for utility 

services provided by the City to the Property. 



 4 

 

Section 4.  Recapture/Termination 

 

In the event that Developer begins operating a Burger King restaurant on the Property, 

but subsequently discontinues operating a restaurant on the Property for any reason, 

excepting fire, explosion, or other casualty or accident or natural disaster or other event 

beyond the reasonable control of Developer for a period of 180 days during the term of 

this Agreement, then in such event this Agreement shall terminate. The burden shall be 

upon Developer to prove to the satisfaction of the City that the discontinuance of the 

operation of the restaurant on the Property was as a result of fire, explosion, or other 

casualty or accident or natural disaster or other event beyond the control of Developer. In 

the event Developer meets this burden and the City is satisfied that the discontinuance of 

the operation of the restaurant on the Property was the result of events beyond the control 

of Developer, then Developer shall have a period of one (1) year in which to resume the 

operation of the restaurant on the Property. In the event that Developer fails to resume the 

operation of the restaurant on the Property within one (1) year, then this Agreement shall 

terminate. The one (1) year time period, hereinabove mentioned, shall commence upon 

written notification from the City to Developer. 

 

In the event that Developer allows ad valorem taxes on real property or business personal 

property taxes owed to the City or utility service payments to become delinquent and fails 

to timely and properly follow the legal procedures for their protest or contest, then in 

such event, this Agreement shall terminate.  

 

In accordance with Chapter 2264, Texas Government Code, Developer certifies that 

Developer, or a branch, division, or department of Developer does not and will not 

knowingly employ an undocumented worker. Developer further certifies that in the event 

that Developer, or a branch, division, or department of Developer, is convicted of a 

violation under 8 U.S.C. Section 1324a(f), Developer shall repay the amounts previously 

paid to Developer by the City pursuant to this Agreement, with interest, at the rate and 

according to the other terms provided herein. Such a conviction shall be cause for this 

Agreement to terminate. 

 

In the event that the City determines that Developer is in default of any of the terms or 

conditions contained in this Agreement, then in such event, the City shall give Developer 

thirty (30) days written notice to cure such default. Except as provided in Section 3(e) 

herein, in the event such default is not cured to the satisfaction of the City within the 

thirty (30) days notice period, then this Agreement shall terminate.  

 

The date of termination as that term is used in this subsection shall, in every instance, be 

the thirtieth (30th) day after the day the City sends notice of default to the address shown 

in this Agreement to Developer. Should the default be cured by Developer within the 

thirty (30) day notice period, Developer shall be responsible for so advising the City and 

obtaining a release from the notice of default from the City, failing in which, the 

Agreement may be considered by the City to be terminated. 

 



 5 

In every case of termination set forth above: (1) the City shall determine in its sole 

discretion whether default has occurred by Developer in the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement, which determination shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed; (2) 

Developer will forfeit any and all payments it has received under this Agreement; and, 

(3) Developer shall be responsible for repayment to the City of any payment provided to 

Developer under the terms of this Agreement during the period that this Agreement was 

in effect. Repayment shall be made to the City within sixty (60) days of the termination 

of this Agreement as provided herein. Amounts required to be repaid to the City pursuant 

to this Agreement shall be repaid with interest, bearing an interest rate of ten percent 

(10%) per annum, said interest accruing beginning on the date of the original sales and 

use tax reimbursement payment from the City to Developer. 

 

Section 5.  Certification of Compliance by Developer 

 

On or before July 1 of each year that this Agreement is in effect, Developer shall certify 

in writing to the City its compliance with all provisions of this Agreement. Such 

certification shall include any and all documentation establishing that Developer has met 

the annual employment requirement for the previous year and that all taxes related to the 

Property have been paid in full as required by law. The City, at any reasonable time, shall 

have the right to review any and all records of Developer related to the provisions of this 

Agreement. 

 

At all reasonable times during the term of this Agreement, the City, and its respective 

designees, may inspect the improvements and the Property in order to verify the 

construction, workmanship, materials, installations, and maintenance involved in or 

incident to, and operation of, the project are performed in substantial compliance with the 

applicable building permits, governmental regulations, and the terms and conditions of 

this Agreement. 

 

Section 6.  Term 

 

This Agreement shall remain in effect until the earlier of: 1) the date the City has made 

all reimbursement payments to the Developer as required by Section 2(a) of this 

Agreement; or 2) the expiration of five (5) years beginning on the first date of collection 

of any sales and use tax amount generated from the new Burger King restaurant, at which 

time this Agreement shall terminate, unless otherwise terminated in accordance with 

another provision of this Agreement. 

 

Section 7.  Entire Agreement 

 

 This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the City and Developer 

with respect to the transactions contemplated herein.  This Agreement may be amended, 

altered, or revoked only by written instrument signed by the City and Developer. 

 

 

 



 6 

Section 8.  Successors and Assigns 

 

 This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties, their 

respective successors and assigns.  Developer may assign all or part of its rights and 

obligations hereunder only upon prior written approval of the City, which approval shall 

not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

 

Section 9.  Notices 

 

 Any notice and/or statement required and permitted to be delivered shall be 

deemed delivered by depositing same in the United States mail, certified with return 

receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to the appropriate party at the following 

addresses or at such addresses provided by the parties in writing hereafter: 

 

 Developer:   Kolkhorst Development Navasota, LLC 

     1801 Shady Lane 

     Brenham, Texas 77833 

 

 City:    City Manager, City of Navasota 

     P.O. Box 910 

     Navasota, Texas 77868-0910 

 

Section 10.  Interpretation 

 

 Regardless of the actual drafter of this Agreement, this Agreement shall in the 

event of a dispute over its meaning or application, be interpreted fairly and reasonably, 

and neither more strongly for or against either party. 

 

Section 11.  Applicable Law 

 

 This Agreement is made and shall be construed and interpreted under the laws of 

the State of Texas and exclusive venue for any cause of action, claim, dispute, or legal 

proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall lie in Grimes County, Texas. 

 

Section 12.  Attorney’s Fees 

 

 The parties hereto agree that the prevailing party in any dispute between the parties 

arising out of this Agreement shall be entitled to recover its attorney’s fees. 

 

Section 13.  Severability 

 

 In the event that any provision of this Agreement is illegal, invalid, or 

unenforceable under present or future laws, then, and in that event, it is the intention of 

the parties hereto that the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and 

it is also the intention of the parties to this Agreement that in lieu of each clause or 

provision that is found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, a provision be added to 



 7 

this Agreement which is legal, valid and enforceable and is as similar in terms as possible 

to the provision found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable. 

 

Section 14.  Mutual Assistance 

 

 City and Developer agree to do all things reasonably necessary or appropriate to 

carry out the terms and provisions of this Agreement and to reasonably aid and assist 

each other in carrying out such terms and provisions. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement to be 

effective on the____________. 

 

 

THE CITY OF NAVASOTA   ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ ____________________________________ 

Hon. Bert Miller, Mayor   Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary  

 

 

 

Kolkhorst Development Navasota, LLC ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ ____________________________________ 

Jim Kolkhorst, President   Printed Name: 

      Title: 



 8 

 

Exhibit A 

 

JONES ADDITION, BLOCK 2, LOT 1R REPLAT (Burger King) 

 

JONES ADDITION, BLOCK 2, LOT 10, SHOPPING CENTER (Subway, Dry Cleaners, 

Kolkhorst) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 9 

 

Exhibit B 

Pavers 

 
Street Lamps 

 



 10 

Planter Boxes 

 
Quantity Item Cost 

2 VP72x30x30 $895.00 

1 Freight $979.00 

TOTAL: $2,769.00 

 

Layout 

 

Total Material Costs: $17,700.21 

 

 



 11 

Exhibit C 

 

Description of restaurant amenities  

 

New quick-serve, single-story Burger King restaurant, 4,320 square feet in size, with 

drive-through service, and parking spaces as required by the applicable building code(s). 



CITY OF NAVASOTA
MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

1. PLANNING CALENDAR
2. MUNICIPAL COURT REPORT OR OCTOBER 2019

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1574263248x_at.pdf
http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1574180088x_at.pdf


 
AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR 

 

NOVEMBER 25, 2019 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 11/12/2019 

1.   Called to order 
2.   Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.   Remarks of visitors 
4.   Staff Report: (a) Introduction of new employees; (b) Arts Council – 4th quarterly report;  
     (c) Proclamation – Tree of Angels; (d) Board and Commission update; and (e) Reports from 

staff and City Council 
5.   Public hearing – rezoning of properties 
6.   1st reading of Ordinance No. 910-19, rezoning of properties 
7.   Public hearing – voluntary annexation from Jim Hassell 
8.   Annexation service plan 
9.   1st reading of Ordinance No. 911-19, voluntary annexation (extending boundaries) from Jim 

Hassell 
10. 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 907-19, animal control ordinance 
11. Executive Session:  Development agreement with Burger King 
12. Reconvene in open session 
13. Action on executive session    
14. Adjourn 

 

DECEMBER 9, 2019 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 11/25/2019 

1.   Called to order 
2.   Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.   Remarks of visitors 
4.   Staff Report: (a) Update from Ameresco on meter replacement; lightening and SCADA 

installation; (b) Board and Commission update; and (c) Reports from staff and City Council 
5.   Consent agenda: (a) Minutes for the month of November 2019; (b) Expenditures for the 

month of November 2019; (c) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 910-19, rezoning of properties; 
and (d) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 911-19, voluntary annexation (extending boundaries) 
from Jim Hassell 

6.   Adjourn 

 

JANUARY 13, 2020 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 12/30/2019 

1.   Called to order 
2.   Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.   Remarks of visitors 
4.   Staff Report: (a) Election update; (b) Board and Commission update; and (c) Reports from 

staff and City Council 
5.   Consent agenda: (a) Minutes for the month of December 2019; and (b) Expenditures for 

the month of December 2019 
6.   Adjourn 

 

JANUARY 27, 2020 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 12/13/2020 

1.   Called to order 
2.   Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.   Remarks of visitors 
4.   Staff Report: (a) Board and Commission update; and (b) Reports from staff and City Council 
5.   Adjourn 

 



                                    O F F I C E   O F   C O U R T   A D M I N I S T R A T I O N

                                             T E X A S   J U D I C A L   C O U N C I L

                                              Official Municipal Court Monthly Report

                     Month   October             Year   2019

           Municipal Court for the City of  NAVASOTA

           Presiding Judge   PATRICIA GRUNER

                      If new, date assumed office _________________

     Court Mailing Address   200 E. MCALPINE

                      City   NAVASOTA, TXZip    77868

              Phone Number   936-825-6268

                Fax Number   936-825-7280

      Court's Public Email   RJESSIE@NAVASOTATX.GOV

           Court's Website   http://WWW.NAVASOTATX.GOV

 

   THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE REFLECTION OF THE RECORDS OF THIS COURT.

   Prepared by _________________________________________________________________

          Date _____________________    Phone: (936) 825-6268

  PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM NO LATER THAN 20 DAYS FOLLOWING THE END OF THE MONTH REPORTED TO:

                         OFFICE OF COURT ADMINISTRATION

                                 P.O. BOX 12066

                                   AUSTIN, TX

                                   78711-2066

                             PHONE: (512) 463-1625

                              Fax: (512) 936-2423

http://WWW.NAVASOTATX.GOV


11/08/2019 08:26 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    1

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

CRIMINAL SECTION

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------------------------------+-----------------------------------+

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                            |              TRAFFIC              |            NON-TRAFFIC            |

MONTH  October     YEAR  2019                              |NON-PARKING|  PARKING  |  CITY ORD | PENAL CODE| STATE LAW |  CITY ORD |

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

1. Total Cases Pending First of Month:                     |        395|          0|         24|        242|         36|         88|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   a. Active Cases                                         |         69|          0|          2|         15|         16|          9|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   b. Inactive Cases                                       |        326|          0|         22|        227|         20|         79|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

2. New Cases Filed                                         |         54|          0|          0|         27|          1|          9|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

3. Cases Reactivated                                       |          5|          0|          1|          7|          1|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

4. All Other Cases Added                                   |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

5. Total Cases on Docket                                   |        128|          0|          3|         49|         18|         18|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

6. Dispositions Prior to Court Appearance or Trial:        |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   a. Uncontested Dispositions                             |         25|          0|          2|          1|          0|          6|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   b. Dismissed by Prosecution                             |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

7. Dispositions at Trial:                                  |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   a. Convictions:                                         |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     1) Guilty Plea or Nolo Contendere                     |         13|          0|          0|         13|          2|          1|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     2) By the Court                                       |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     3) By the Jury                                        |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   b. Acquittals:                                          |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     1) By the Court                                       |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     2) By the Jury                                        |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   c. Dismissed by Prosecution                             |          1|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+



11/08/2019 08:26 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

CRIMINAL SECTION

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------------------------------+-----------------------------------+

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                            |              TRAFFIC              |            NON-TRAFFIC            |

MONTH  October     YEAR  2019                              |NON-PARKING|  PARKING  |  CITY ORD | PENAL CODE| STATE LAW |  CITY ORD |

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

8. Compliance Dismissals:                                  |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   a. After Driver Safety Course                           |          5|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   b. After Deferred Disposition                           |          4|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   c. After Teen Court                                     |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   d. After Tobacco Awareness Course                       |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|          0|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   e. After Treatment for Chemical Dependency              |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|          0|          0|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   f. After Proof of Financial Responsibility              |          1|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   g. All Other Transportation Code Dismissals             |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

9. All Other Dispositions                                  |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

10. Total Cases Disposed                                   |         49|          0|          2|         14|          2|          7|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

11. Cases Placed on Inactive Status                        |         10|          0|          0|         12|          0|          3|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

12. Total Cases Pending End of Month:                      |        400|          0|         22|        255|         35|         90|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

    a. Active Cases                                        |         69|          0|          1|         23|         16|          8|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

    b. Inactive Cases                                      |        331|          0|         21|        232|         19|         82|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

13. Show Cause Hearings Held                               |         18|          0|          0|          1|          5|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

14. Cases Appealed:                                        |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

    a. After Trial                                         |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

    b. Without Trial                                       |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+



11/08/2019 08:26 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    3

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

CIVIL SECTION

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                            |                |

MONTH  October     YEAR  2019                              |  TOTAL CASES   |

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

1.  Total Cases Pending First of Month:                    |               0|

                                                           +----------------+

    a. Active Cases                                        |               0|

                                                           +----------------+

    b. Inactive Cases                                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

2.  New Cases Filed                                        |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

3.  Cases Reactivated                                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

4.  All Other Cases Added                                  |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

5.  Total Cases on Docket                                  |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

6.  Uncontested Civil Fines or Penalties                   |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

7.  Default Judgments                                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

8.  Agreed Judgments                                       |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

9.  Trial/Hearing by Judge/Hearing Officer                 |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

10. Trial by Jury                                          |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

11. Dismissed for Want of Prosecution                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

12. All Other Dispositions                                 |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

13. Total Cases Disposed                                   |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

14. Cases Placed on Inactive Status                        |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

15. Total Cases Pending End of Month:                      |               0|

                                                           +----------------+

    a. Active Cases                                        |               0|

                                                           +----------------+

    b. Inactive Cases                                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

16. Cases Appealed:                                        |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +----------------+

    a. After Trial                                         |               0|

                                                           +----------------+

    b. Without Trial                                       |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+



11/08/2019 08:26 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    4

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

JUVENILE/MINOR ACTIVITY

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                                                  |                |

MONTH  October     YEAR  2019                                                    |     TOTAL      |

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

1. Transportation Code Cases Filed                                               |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

2. Non-driving Alcoholic Beverage Code Cases Filed                               |               1|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

3. Driving Under the Influence of Alcohol Cases Filed                            |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

4. Drug Paraphernalia Cases Filed                                                |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

5. Tobacco Cases Filed                                                           |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

6. Truancy Cases Filed                                                           |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

7. Education Code (Except Failure to Attend) Cases Filed                         |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

8. Violation of Local Daytime Curfew Ordinance Cases Filed                       |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

9. All Other Non-traffic Fine-only Cases Filed                                   |               2|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

10. Transfer to Juvenile Court:                                                  |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                 +----------------+---------------------------------

  a. Mandatory Transfer                                                          |               0|

                                                                                 +----------------+---------------------------------

  b. Discretionary Transfer                                                      |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

11. Accused of Contempt and Referred to Juvenile Court (Delinquent Conduct)      |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

12. Held in Contempt by Criminal Court (Fined and/or Denied Driving Privileges)  |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

13. Juvenile Statement Magistrate Warning:                                       |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                 +----------------+---------------------------------

  a. Warnings Administered                                                       |               0|

                                                                                 +----------------+---------------------------------

  b. Statements Certified                                                        |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

14. Detention Hearings Held                                                      |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

15. Orders for Non-secure Custody Issued                                         |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

16. Parent Contributing to Nonattendance Cases Filed                             |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------



11/08/2019 08:26 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    5

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ADDITIONAL ACTIVITY

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+-----------------+--------------

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                                                   |                | NUMBER REQUESTS |

MONTH  October     YEAR  2019                                                     |  NUMBER GIVEN  |   FOR COUNSEL   |

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+-----------------+--------------

1. Magistrate Warnings:                                                           |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                  +----------------+-----------------+--------------

  a. Class C Misdemeanors                                                         |              14|XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                  +----------------+-----------------+--------------

  b. Class A and B Misdemeanors                                                   |               0|                0|

                                                                                  +----------------+-----------------+--------------

  c. Felonies                                                                     |               0|                0|

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+-----------------+--------------

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|      TOTAL      |

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

2. Arrest Warrants Issued:                                                                         |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  a. Class C Misdemeanors                                                                          |               22|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  b. Class A and B Misdemeanors                                                                    |                3|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  c. Felonies                                                                                      |                3|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

3. Capiases Pro Fine Issued                                                                        |               11|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

4. Search Warrants Issued                                                                          |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

5. Warrants for Fire, Health and Code Inspections Filed                                            |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

6. Examining Trials Conducted                                                                      |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

7. Emergency Mental Health Hearings Held                                                           |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

8. Magistrate's Order for Emergency Protection Issued                                              |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

9. Magistrate's Orders for Ignition Interlock Device Issued                                        |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

10. All Other Magistrates's Orders Issued Requiring Conditions for Release on Bond                 |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

11. Drivers's License Denial, Revocation or Suspension Hearings Held                               |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

12. Disposition of Stolen Property Hearings Held                                                   |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

13. Peace Bond Hearings Held                                                                       |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------



11/08/2019 08:26 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    6

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ADDITIONAL ACTIVITY

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|      TOTAL      |

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

14. Cases in Which Fine and Court Costs Satisfied by Community Service:                            |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  a. Partial Satisfaction                                                                          |                0|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  b. Full Satisfaction                                                                             |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

15. Cases in Which Fine and Court Costs Satisfied by Jail Credit                                   |               16|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

16. Cases in Which Fine and Court Costs Waived for Indigency                                       |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

17. Amount of Fines and Court Costs Waived for Indigency                                           |            $0.00|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

18. Fines, Court Costs and Other Amounts Collected:                                                |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  a. Kept by City                                                                                  |        $9,719.81|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  b. Remitted to State                                                                             |        $4,162.59|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  c. Total                                                                                         |       $13,882.40|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------



11/08/2019 08:26 AM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    7

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 

Run By:             rjessie

Report Type:        Summary

Date Range:         10/01/2019 - 10/31/2019

Finalize Report:    Yes

Correction:         No

      *** END OF REPORT ***


	Regular Meeting
	Agenda Item No.  -  City Manager's Message and Statements and Priorities
	 City Manager's Message
	 Statements and Priorities

	Agenda Item No. 4 -  Staff Report:
(a) Introduction of new employees;
(b) Arts Council quarterly report for 4th quarter;
(c) Proclamation - Tree of Angels;
(d) Board and Commission update; and
(e) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests, including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials, public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after the posting of the agenda.
	 Arts Council Quarterly Report
	 Proclamation

	Agenda Item No. 5 -  Conduct a public hearing to receive public comment and testimony regarding zoning changes initiated by the Planning and Zoning Commission, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to M-2: Heavy Industrial District for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 4-3, Acres 22.809, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-1A: high density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 21-1, Acres 54.00, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-3: high density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district for the properties legally described as A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 19, Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 18, Acres 23.52 and A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres 10.00, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
	 Staff Report

	Agenda Item No. 6 -  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 910-19, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to M-2: Heavy Industrial District for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 4-3, Acres 22.809, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-1A: high density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 21-1, Acres 54.00, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-2: medium density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district for the properties legally described as A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 19, Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 18, Acres 23.52 and A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres 10.00, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
	 Ordinance No. 910-19

	Agenda Item No. 7 -  Conduct a public hearing to receive public comments and testimony regarding the voluntary annexation request submitted by James C. Hassell of a 102.4197 acre tract of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-62 and the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Grimes County, Texas.
	 Annexation Exhibit
	 Aerial View

	Agenda Item No. 8 -  Consideration and possible action on an Annexation Service Plan Agreement for the delivery of municipal services to a 102.4197 acre tract proposed for annexation to the City of Navasota.
	 Service Plan Agreement

	Agenda Item No. 9 -  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 911-19, extending the boundary limits of the City of Navasota, Texas, providing for the annexation of approximately 102.4197 acre tract of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-62 and the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Grimes County, Texas.
	 Ordinance No. 911-19

	Agenda Item No. 10 -  Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 907-19, amending Chapter 2 Animal Control of the Code of Ordinances, City of Navasota, Texas. 
	 Ordinance No. 907-19

	Agenda Item No. 11 -  Executive Session: The City Council shall meet in Executive Session as permitted by Section 551.087, Texas Government Code, for the purpose of deliberation regarding economic development negotiations with Kolkhorst Development Navasota, LLC regarding the development of commercial and other improvements to property located on E. Washington Avenue, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
 
 
	 Development Agreement

	Agenda Item No. 12 -  Reconvene in open session.

	Agenda Item No. 13 -  Consideration and possible action on Executive Session Item relating to Executive Session as permitted by Section 551.087, Texas Government Code, on approval of a Chapter 380 agreement with Kolkhorst Development Navasota, LLC regarding the development of commercial and other improvements to property located on E. Washington Avenue, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
	 380 Development Agreement

	Agenda Item No. 14 -  1. Planning Calendar
2. Municipal Court Report for October 2019.

	 Planning Calendar
	 Municipal Court Report or October 2019




